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Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of GARG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of GARG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD ("the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2022, and the statement of Profit and Loss
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March, 2022, its profit/loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinioh

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of

the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our

audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key
_audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S. No. | Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
| 1. NI NIL

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we concl RIB\iS a materia| misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have ot ROt in this regard.



P

/

¢ A R R

/ Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Compames
Act, 2013 (‘the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fglr view
of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 'ghe
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified'under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting recorgis in accordarjce
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preven’tmg'and‘ detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completen(-_ass of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Compaqy’s ability. to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place

and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditqf;s . However, future events or conditions may




_ ‘ . atements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
» achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, make§ it probable that thg economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors

in (i) planning thg scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

Wg communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and sj

_ ‘ - gnificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We glso provide thqse charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

‘Annexure B’

g) With respect to the other matters to be included_ in the Auditor's report in accordance with the
requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act as amended, we report that Section 197 is not applicable to
a private company. Hence reporting as per Section 197(16) is not required.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditqr'§ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

i, acts— \0g derivative contracts for which




ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
P'rotection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)' by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than
‘as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
Whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (j) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material mis-statement.

V. No dividend have been declared or paid during the year by the company.

For SANJAY KUMAR AGARWAL AND
ASSOCIAT

Place:-MUZAFFARNAGAR
Date: 01/09/2022
UDIN: 22071902ATAKPU6247 Membership No. 071902



Annexure ‘A’

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of Our Report on “Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”.

We report that:

(i)

(ii)

(@  (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and  Equipment;

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, clause
3(i)(@)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Property, Plant and Equipment have
been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals: no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification:;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties
(other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statementsare held in the
name of the company, except the following:-

Description Gross Held in Whether Period held - | Reason for
of Property | carrying name of promoter, indicate not being
value director or | range, where held in
: their relative | appropriate name of
or employee company
N.A.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not revalued its Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) As explained to us & on the basis of the records examined by us, in our opinion,
physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. No discrepancy of 10% or more in the aggregate for each

class of inventory were noticed @apkges
*_\)




(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis qf our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has been sanctioned
during any point of time of the year, working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current

assets.

Current Year:-

Particulars Qtr/Month As per As per DIFF R‘eason of 2
books statement difference |
M Sook (| Qtr-1 | 18774817 1874.98 -2.83 Due to data entry |
Material, phenucals, ' error
S 3 Soey & | (STOCK)
Book Debts & Other
Current Assets
e Fav o Qtr2 | 1852.75 | 1853.11 0.36 Due to data entry
aterial, emicals,
Fuel, Packing, : error
Stores a&?ksga:;vsl) P& (STOC K)
Book Debts & Other
L Current Assets
3; “;n j“’c(':‘hemff::” Qtr-3 2569.74 2403.28 -166.46 Due to omission
Fuel, Pa.cking. W.I.P.,. (STOCK) error in stock
Stores ares
B;ok D:btfp& Ot)he&r Statement
Current Assets
Q’;te”j‘°°éhemff;:“] Qtr-4 2937.24 2987.68 50.44 Due to wrongly |
Fuel, Packing, W.LP.. (STOCK) taken of capital :
Lo gy goods as store and |
Current Assets spare items.
Previous Year:-
Particulars | Qtr/Month As per As per DIFF Reason of I
books statement difference l
|
:‘A",‘ﬂe”as,"°°(':‘hemff;: Qtr-1 1480.92 1200.62 -280.30 Due to omission [
e £ B o (STOCK) errorin stock |
Book Debts & Other statement
Current Assets |
a’i'dteri:‘°cckhemf;‘l’: Qtr-2 978.85 997.87 19.02 Due to Different
Fuel, Packing, W.I.P., H
S:J;es a: 'ggares) & (STOCK) StOCk Valuatlon
Book Debts & Other Method
Current Assets




(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

SO, S
Vatern mrer 2 | Q-3 | 2019.80 | 2219.29 99.49 Due to Different
Fuel, Packing, W..P., | (STOCK) Stock Valuation

Stores & Spares) & Method

Book Debts & Other
Current Assets

Matenn e | Qtr-4 | 138552 | 1322.00° -63.52 Due to omission
Fuel, Packing, W 1P | (STOCK) error in stock
Stores & Spares) & statement

Book Debts & Other
Current Assets

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not made investments in,
nor provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c),
3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security,
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with
except non charging of interest on the loan.

The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of cost records
has been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act & same is maintained by the company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanation given to us there were no
outstanding statutory dues as on 31st of March, 2022 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, there is no statutory dues referred to in
sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on account of any dispute except
following : (if applicalb!-)

Period to

Name Nature of Amount Forum where

of the the Dues (Rs.)/
2

Remarks, if

Dispute is Any




Statute |

amount relates pending

NIL

J

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix)

(@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender :

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not been declared a
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender:;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Cormpany has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the
purposes for which they were obtained, except for:

)

(xi)

Nature of |Name of the| Amount Purpose for Purpose for Remarks
the fund lender diverted  |which amount | which amount
- raised (Rs.) was was utilized
sanctioned
NIL

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on
short term basis have been used for long term purposes by the company.

(d) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint
venture (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint
venture (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022 Accordingly
clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable.

(xii) (a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the

Order is not applicable.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of th 25D the company has not made any

preferential allotment or private p, segment o ’h*v es or convertible debentures (fully,

n
[=]
o,
T
I

D
2]



partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) - (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according tc;the
information and explanations given to us , no fraud by the company or any fraud on
the company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report undgr sub-section
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government:

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints had been received by the company

(xiv)  The company is not a Nidhi Cdmpany. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards;

(xvi) (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company requires to have an
internal audit system.

(b) Based on information and explanations provided to us, internal audit had been
conducted of the company.

(xvii) In our'opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with

him and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the Company

SR T T

(xviii) (a) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable

SRR SR

(b) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not conducted any
Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. ,

(¢) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not a Core Investment

Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

NS ST e OB

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the mana
does not have not more than one CIC as part of the Group.
(xix)  Based on our examination, the com

gement, the Group

! as not incurred cash losses in the financial
o)l year.




) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii)

of the Order is not applicable.
he financial ratios,

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of t R bifties, OUF
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabi '

inati f the
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination 0
ttention, which causes us to

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our a s pioik
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company lsd

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when tr.le)'( fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state tha.t th!s is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting IS based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance

that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xxii)
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has
transferred unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act within a
period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-

section (5) of section 135 of the said Act, except in respect of following;

Financial Amount unspent on Amount Transferred to Amount Transferred after
year* CSR activities “other | Fund specified in Sch VI the due date (specify the
than Ongoing within 6 months from the date of deposit)
Projects” end of the Financial Year
N.A.

(*For Current year and for the previous year/(s) for which the amount remains unspent)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in respect of ongoing project the company has transferred unspent
amount to a Special Account, within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial year in
compliance with Sec.135(6) of the said Act, except in respect of the following:

Financial year* | Amount unspent on Amount Transferred to Amount Transferred
CSR activities for - Special Account within 30 after the due date
“Ongoing Projects” days from the end of the (specify the date of
Financial Year transfer)
(a (b) (c) (d)
N.A.

(xxiii) The company is not required to prepare Consolidate financial statement hence this clause is
not applicable.

For SANJAY KUMAR £

ASSOCIATAS \

Chartered A¢¢
FRN: 002874

ARWAL AND

Place:-MUZAFFARNAGAR S \
Date: 01/09/2022 (PAAN;TANYE'I(? )



Annexure‘B’

Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
Statements

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GARG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS
PVT LTD (‘the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of

the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.

icient and appropriate to provide a basis for our



" Meani ; :
ng of Interna| Financia| Controls Over Financial Reportin
A company's inter
assurance regardi

nal financia| control over fin

; Ng the reliability of financial
Purposes in accordance with g 4 et

over financia| reporting include

ancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
eporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
enerally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
s those policies and procedures that

1. pertain ‘to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
trangactlons and dispositions of the assets of the company;

PFOVId§ réasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and

2,

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

[nherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SANJAY KUMAR AGARWAL AND
ASSOCIATES

Place:-MUZAFFARNAGAR _ KUMARAGARWAL
Date: 01/09/2022 (PARTNER)—"~
Membership No. 071902
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SANJAY KUMAR AGARWAL AND 190/2-1, SOUTH CIVIL LINES,
— ’ ZAFFARNAGAR 251001
ASSOCIATES m :ggsanjayagarwal@gman com

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of GARG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of GARG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2022, and the statement of Profit and Loss
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March, 2022, its profit/loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinioh

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of

the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key

audit matters to be communicated in our report.

1. [ NIL NIL

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements 01"
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

_ IS a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We h xé‘ Othing to™xghdyt in this regard. °
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/’ Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial

/- Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with Fhe
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards Specified.under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing.and_ detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completengss of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Compaqy’s ability. to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place

and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditq:s - However, future events or conditions may
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/ s , 5 + l]t n e and content of the ’lnanCIGl Statelllents, lHCIUd”Ig the dISCIOSUfeS,

/

/

- achieves fair presentation.

statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

in (i) planning thg scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

Wg communic:ate~ with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and

_ A ( significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We glso provide tho§e c_harged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regqulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

‘Annexure B’.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's report in accordance with the
requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act as amended, we report that Section 197 is not applicable to
a private company. Hence reporting as per Section 197(16) is not required.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

.. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term
there were any material foreseeable losses.




ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
P,rotection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)' by th,e
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
Whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than
‘as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
Whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been 'considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material mis-statement.

V.. Nodividend have been declared or paid during the year by the company.

For SANJAY KUMAR AGARWAL AND
ASSOCIAT.

Place:-MUZAFFARNAGAR
Date: 01/09/2022
UDIN: 22071902ATAKPU6247 Membership No. 071902



Annexure ‘A’

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of Our Report on “Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”.

We report that:

(i)

(i)

(@ (A) The compény has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plantand  Equipment;

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, clause
3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Property, Plant and Equipment have
been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals;: no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties
(other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statementsare held in the
name of the company, except the following:-

Description Gross Held in Whether Period held - | Reason for
of Property | carrying name of promoter, indicate not being
value director or | range, where held in
: their relative | appropriate name of
or employee company
N.A.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not revalued its Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) As explained to us & on the basis of the records examined by us, in our opinion,
physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. No discrepancy of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed : «\apl\'gtﬁ verification of stocks by the management

as compared to book records. 3’
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis qf our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has been sanctioned
during any point of time of the year, working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current

assets.

Current Year:-

Particulars | Qtr/Month As per As per DIFF R‘eason of !
books statement difference J‘
Al Stock  (Rew | Q. 1877.81 1874.98 -2.83 Due to data entry |
Material, Qhelw1lcals, . error
o 3 e & | (STOCK)
Book Debts & Other
Current Assets
.t e QiR | 185278 | 1863.11 0.36 Due to data entry
aterial, emicals,
cking, W.I.P.. error
twres & S & | (STODK)
Book Debts & Other
Current Assets
a’;t;n j‘°°ghemfc":':“ Qtr-3 2569.74 2403.28 -166.46 Due to omission
Fuel, Packing. WP, | (STOCK) error in stock
Stores ares
Bz::)k D:btf F}&reOt)heS; Statement
Current Assets
e
Q’;tenasl‘°°ghemffj:’ Qtr-4 2937.24 2987.68 50.44 Due to wrongly |
Fuel, Packing, W.IP. (STOCK) taken of capital |
|
S g goods as store and
Current Assets spare items.
Previous Year:-
Particulars Qtr/Month As per As per DIFF Reason of |
books statement difference '
aw | o !
A s Ol 1480.92 1200.62 -280.30 Due to omission |
Fuel, Packing, W.I.P., i |
S:;es a; lggares) & (STOCK) errorin stock é
Book Debts & Other statement
Current Assets
i |
Stock Raw
agtenalv‘°°0hemfc;s‘ Qtr-2 978.85 997.87 19.02 Due to Different
Fuel, Packing, W.I.P,, 5
S:ores a; S;g)ares) & (STOCK) Stock Valuation
Book Debts & Other Method
Current Assets




e WL | ars | 201980 2219.29 99.49 Due to Different

Fuel, Packing, W.I.P_, (STOCK) Stock Valuation

Stores & Spares) & Method
Book Debts & Other
Current Assets

Moo e | Qtr-4 | 138552 | 1322.00° -63.52 Due to omission
Fuel. Packing, W17 | (STOCK) error in stock
Stores & Spares) & statement

Book Debts & Other
Current Assets

(i)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of qur
examination of the records of the company, the company has not made investments in,
nor provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c),
3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security,
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with
except non charging of interest on the loan.

(v)  The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi)  As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of cost records
has been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act & same is maintained by the company.

(vii)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanation given to us there were no
outstanding statutory dues as on 31st of March, 2022 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(viii)
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, there is no statutory dues referred to in
sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on account of any dispute except
following : (if applicable)

Name Nature of | Amount Period to Forum where Remarks, if
A
ofthe | theDues | (Rs), St Dispute is
@
*




(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

Statute |

amount relates pending

NIL

)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender :

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not been declared a
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the
purposes for which they were obtained, except for:

Nature of |Name of the| Amount Purpose for Purpose for Remarks
the fund lender diverted  |which amount | which amount
- raised (Rs.) was was utilized
sanctioned
NIL

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on
short term basis have been used for long term purposes by the company.

(d) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint
venture (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint
venture (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022 Accordingly
clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable.

(a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of th the company has not made any

€s or convertible debentures (fully,

n
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partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

/ (Xiii)  (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according tzthe
information and explanations given to us , no fraud by the company or any fraud on
the company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report undgr sub-section
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form. ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints had been received by the company

(xiv)  The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards;

(xvi) (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company requires to have an
internal audit system.

(b) Based on information and explanations provided to us, internal audit had been
conducted of the company.

(xvii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the Company

(xviii) (a) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(A TR T
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(b) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not conducted any
Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. ,

(¢) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of Ingia
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Group
, does not have not more than one CIC as part of the Group. ’
{ (xix) Based on our examination, the compz

. . n S notincurred cash losses in the financial
year and in the immediately preceqisfj

¥l year.




)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xvii)

of the Order is not applicable.

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the'ﬁn?nctn'a! ratnos':
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial !labl'htles; o:
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our e‘xammatuon (o) tte

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes }JS C;
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company Isdno
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when ﬂjle)( fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state thaf th!S is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get

discharged by the company as and when they fall due.
(xxii)
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, in respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has

transferred unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies A'ct within a
period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-
section (5) of section 135 of the said Act, except in respect of following;

Financial Amount unspent on Amount Transferred to Amount Transferred after
year* CSR activities “other | Fund specified in Sch VI the due date (specify the
than Ongoing within 6 months from the date of deposit)
Projects” end of the Financial Year
N.A.

(*For Current year and for the previous year/(s) for which the amount remains unspent)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in respect of ongoing project the company has transferred unspent
amount to a Special Account, within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial year in
compliance with Sec.135(6) of the said Act, except in respect of the following:

Financial year* | Amount unspent on Amount Transferred to Amount Transferred
CSR activities for Special Account within 30 after the due date
“Ongoing Projects” days from the end of the (specify the date of

Financial Year transfer)

(a) (b) (c) (d)

N.A.

(xxiii) The company is not required to prepare Consolidate financial statement hence this clause is
not applicable.

For SANJAY KUMAR AGARWAL AND

Place:-MUZAFFARNAGAR
Date: 01/09/2022




Annexure‘B’

Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GARG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS
PVT LTD (‘the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of

the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we hay ined i icient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
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Flal. control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
purposes in accorzg the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
over financia| .nc.e with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control

cial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

Meanin i i

g of Interna| Financia| Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal finan
assurance regardi

1. pertain _tO the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
tran;act:ons and dispositions of the assets of the company;

Z, Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

[nherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SANJAY KUMAR AGARWAL AND
ASSOCIA\'\[ES\Q

Place:-MUZAFFARNAGAR AY KUNARASARWAL
Date: 01/09/2022 (PARTNER
Membership No. 071902
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GARG DUPI.LEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD

8.5 K.M. BHOPA ROAD, MUZAFFARNAGAR-251001
CIN : U21011UP1985PTC007472

Ph No : 8941095976

Email : garg_duplex@hotmail.com

(F.Y. 2021-2022)

falance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 < in lakhs
Particulars Note | s at 31st March 2022 | As at 31st March 2021
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES :
Shareholder's funds
Share capital 1 685.50 685.50
Reserves and surpius 2 4,270.26 3,691.99
Money received against share warrants 0.00 0.00
4,955.76 4,377.49
Share application money pending allotment 0.00 0.00
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 3 693.20 333.98
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 4 364.46 346.81
Other long term liabilities 5 175.35 175.35
Long-term provisions 6 309.05 159.19
1,542.06 1,015.33
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 7 1,327.84 761.40
Trade payables 8
(A) Micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.00 0.00
(B) Others 3,396.95 3,508.22
Other current liabilities 9 299.39 86.94
Short-term provisions 6 496.33 552.02
5,520.51 4,908.59
TOTAL 12,018.33 10,301.41
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property,Plant and Equipment and Intangible 10
assets
Property,Plant and Equipment 2,947.01 2,881.52
Intangible assets 0.00 0.00
Capital work-in-Progress 759.61 0.00
Intangible assets under development 0.00 0.00
Non-current investments 11 38.06 38.06
Deferred tax assets (net) 4 0.00 0.00
Long-term loans and advances 12 0.00 0.00
Other non-current assets 2449 2423
3,769.18 2,943.82
Current assets
Current investments 0.00 0.00
Inventories 13 2,937.24 1,385.52
Trade receivables 14 4,231.65 4,870.68
Cash and cash equivalents 15 114.99 124.38
Short-term loans and advances 12 965.27 977.01
Other current assets 0.00 0.00
8,249.15 7,357.59
TOTAL 12,018.33 10,301.41

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

for Gag Duplex And Pa mmn\i
N

Director
JEEV JAIN
Whole-time director
DIN: 00140469

SANJAY KU

PARTNER ¥ «

. s
Membership No.? ere! -
Place: MUZAFFARN

fsate: 01/09/2022

1115 1&] . SO TACGOATAVDILICDAT

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Garg Duplex And Paper Mills Pvt Ltd

RAJESM&CW

Whole-time director
DIN: 00141162




CGARG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVTLTD

8.5 K.M. BHOPA ROAD, MUZAFFARNAGAR-251001
‘CIN : U21011UP1985PTC007472

Ph No : 8941095976

Email : garg_duplex@hotmail.com

(F.Y. 2021-2022)

Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2022 X in lakhs
R Particulars ':ﬁ)te 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Revenue -
Revenue from operations 16 28,757.77 21,959.05
Less: Excise duty 0.00 0.00
Net Sales 28,757.77 21,959.05
Other income 17 37.56 14.54
Total Income 28,795.33 21,973.60
Expenses
Cost of material Consumed 18 17,513.25 13,220.34
Purchase of stock-in-trade 16.49 35.30
Changes in inventories 19 (98.70) 207.41
Employee benefit expenses 20 893.46 489.15
Finance costs 21 135.01 112.28
Depreciation and amortization expenses 22 197.47 169.97
Other expenses 23 9,268.46 6,649.44
Total expenses 27,925.44 20,883.90
:rrw(c)iﬁtta 2efore exceptional, extraordinary and prior period items 869.89 1,089.70
Exceptional items 0.00 0.00
Profit before extraordinary and prior period items and tax 869.89 1,089.70
Extraordinary items 0.00 0.00
Prior period item 0.00 0.00
Profit before tax 869.89 1,089.70
Tax expenses
Current tax 24 270.25 299.82
Deferred tax _ 17.64 67.62
Excess/short provision relating earlier year tax 25 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
Profit(Loss) for the period 582.00 722.25
Earning per share-in =
Basic 26
Before extraordinary ltems 8.49 10.54
After extraordinary Adjustment 8.49 10.54
Diluted
Before extraordinary !tems 0.00 0.00
After extraordinary Adjustment 0.00 0.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
i T3 o laing

\ For Gerg DUp

PARTNER /
Membersh}p No 071902 - & /
Place: MUZAFFKMAGAR P
Date: 01/09/2022 "~ —

UDIN : 22071 902ATAKP U6247

nd Paphy Mils pvt Uq

—

JEEV JADNector
Whole-time director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

DIN: 00140469

For Garg Duplex And Paper Mills Pvi Lig

RAJESH JAIM
Whole-time director Diréctor

DIN: 00141162
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GARG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD (F.Y. 2021-2022)
8.5 K.M. BHOPA ROAD, MUZAFFARNAGAR-251001
‘CIN : U21011UP1985PTC007472
Ph No : 8941095976
Email : garg_duplex@hotmail.com
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2022 ¥ in lakhs
F PARTICULARS 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
A Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items(as per
Statement of Profit and Loss) & o 869.89 1,089.70
Adjustments for non Cash/ Non trade items:
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 197.47 169.97
Finance Cost 135.01 112.28
/(Agg::;r)nents for unrealised foreign exchange Losses / (0.19) 0.00
Interest received (5.78) (12.18)
Other Inflows / (Outflows) of cash 149.87 11.14
Operating profits before Working Capital Changes 1,346.27 1,370.90
Adjusted For:
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables 639.03 (1,391.52)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (111.27) 406.23
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (1,551.72) 141.16
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities (113.49) 70.92
(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances 11.74 (479.75)
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets 0.19 0.00
Cash generated from Operations 220.74 117.94
Income Tax (Paid) / Refund 0.00 0.00
Net Cash flow from Operating Activities(A) 220.74 117.94
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of tangible assets (1,044.29) (293.91)
Proceeds from sales of tangible assets 21.72 68.55
Interest Received 5.78 12.18
Cash advances and loans made to other parties 0.00 (23.70)
Other Inflow / (Outflows) of cash (0.26) 0.00
Net Cash used in Investing Activities(B) (1,017.05) (236.88)
C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Finance Cost ~ (135.01) (112.28)
Increase in / (Repayment) of Short term Borrowings 566.44 (86.48)
Increase in / (Repayment) of Long term borrowings 359.22 242 51
Other Inflows / (Outflows) of cash (3.73) (30.11)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities(C) 786.92 13.64
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash
B, Equivalents(A+B+C) (9.39) (105.30)
E Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of period 124.38 22967
. Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of period ’ 114.99 124 38
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash 4
G |Equivalents(F-E) 8:39) (105.30)
H. |Difference (F-(D+E)) 0.00 0.00

Chartered Accountgh
(FRN: 002873C)| '€

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors



/' Ph No : 8941095976

ARG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD (F-¥. 20212022
4.5 KM. BHOPA ROAD, MUZAFFARNAGAR-251001
/CIN : U21011UP1985PTC007472

Email : garg_duplex And Pap Mils P LY for Garg Duplen And Papat Millh Pyl g
For Garg OuP
irector Director
{ ‘/(

g::%ﬁ;;UMAR AGAR JEEV JAIN RAJESH JAIN
Membership No.: 071902 Whole-time director Whole-time director
Place: MUZAFFARNAGAR DIN: 00140469 DIN: 00141162
Date: 01/09/2022 ;
UDIN : 22071902ATAKPU6247 = -
Note:

a The Cash Flow_ Statement has been prepared by Indirect Method as per AS-3 issued by ICAI.
2. F!gures _of previous year have been rearranged/regrouped wherever necessary
3. Figures in brackets are outflow/deductions .



ARG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD (F.Y. 2021-2022)
4.5 K.M. BHOPA ROAD, MUZAFFARNAGAR-251001
"CIN : U21011UP1985PTC007472
" Ph No : 8941095976
Email : garg_duplex@hotmail.com

Notes to .Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
The previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to confirm to the
current year presentation.

Note No. 1 Share Capital Z in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March | As at 31st March

: 2022 2021
Authorised :
8000000 (31/03/2021:8000000) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value
(Fully Paid Up) 4 800.00 800.00
Issued :
6855000 (31/03/2021:6855000) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 685.50 685.50
Subscribed and paid-up :
6855000 (31/03/2021:6855000) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 685.50 685.50
Total 685.50 685.50

Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares < in lakhs
As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
At the beginning of the period 68,55,000 685.50 68,55,000 685.50
Issued during the Period 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Redeemed or bought back during the period 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Outstanding at end of the period 68,55,000 685.50 68,55,000 685.50

Right, Preferences and Restriction attached to shares

Equity shares
The company has only one class of Equity having a par value Rs. 10.00 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote

per share held. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the Equity shareholders are eligible
to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their

shareholding.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Type of Share Name of Shareholders No. of % of No. of % of
Shares Holding Shares Holding
Equity [NV: 10.00 ] TRISHLA JAIN 5,03,100 7.34 5,03,100 7.34
Equity [NV: 10.00] RAJESH JAIN : 4,59,500 6.70 4,59,500 6.70
Equity [NV: 10.00 ]| SUMITRA JAIN 583,130 8.51 5,83,130 8.51
Equity [NV: 10.00 ]| MONICA JAIN 5,15,100 7.51 5,15,100 7.51
Equity [NV: 10.00 ]| DIVYA JAIN 5,04,300 7.36 5,04,300 7.36
Equity [NV: 10.00 ] |NEENA JAIN 4,10,000 5.98 4,10,000 5.98
Equity [NV: 10.00 ] | VIBHA JAIN /m 900,000 7.29 5,00,000 7.29
: /v Totar o\ 34,75,130 50.69] . 3475,130 50'1?34 s PR
e(‘\‘\.\\\sr"\_ dpa \ g
gund™ rorGanHe
% pieeeS D"
Details of shares held by Promoters
7 Previous Year
Shares at beginning Shares at end Chang | Shares at beginning Shares at end Ch‘yaongj
e
e
P 1t . [)
r:;nr:eer Particulars | Number % Number % Number % Number % I




ARG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD
| 5 K.M. BHOPA ROAD, MUZAFFARNAGAR-251001

JEIN : U21011UP1985PTC007472

" ph No : 8941095976

, Email : garg_duplex@hotmail.com

(F.Y. 2021-2022)

paney $g,“o‘g][“"i 280500| 4.09|  280500| 409| 000  280500| 409| 280500/ 4.09) 0.00
E i N
RAREL. e 450500| 670  459500| 670 000 459500 670 459500 6.70] 0.0
Total 740000 740000 740000 740000
Note No. 2 Reserves and surplus ¥ in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Surplus
Opening Balance £ 3,165.55 2,473.41
Add: Profit for the year 582.00 722.25
Less:Previous Year Expenses (3.73) (30.11)
Closing Balance 3,743.82 3,165.55
Securities premium
Opening Balance 505.00 505.00
Add: Addition during the year 0.00 0.00
Less : Deletion during the year 0.00 0.00
Closing Balance 505.00 505.00
Other reserves
Opening Balance 21.44 21.44
Add: Addition during the year 0.00 0.00
Less : Deletion during the year 0.00 0.00
Closing Balance 21.44 21.44
Balance carried to balance sheet 4,270.26 3,691.99
Note No. 3 Long-term borrowings , Z in lakhs
As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
: Non-Curre | Current Non-Curre | Current
Particulars nt Maturities soual nt Maturities Total
Term Loan - From banks
Term Loan from HDFC
Bank-GECL secured 124.54 48.94 173.48 173.48 0.00 173.48
Car Loan from S.B.I. secured 0.00 1.96 1.96 1.46 7.15 8.61
Car Loan from HDFC bank -
e 151.10 59.52 210.63 119.17 43.82 162.99
Term -Loan from HDFC 4
Project loan secured | 388.88 69:80 458.68 0.00 0.00 0.00
Car Laon Daimler Financial
Service P Ltd secured 2857 7.28 35.97 0.00 0.00 0.00
- 693.20 187.51 880.71 294.11 50.98 345.08
Loans and advances from
related parties
Loans From Others 0.00 0.00 0.00
unsecured ' ' 39.87 0.00 39.87
0.00 0.00 0.00 39.87 0.00 39.87
The Above Amount Includes
Secured Borrowings 693.20 187.51 880.71 294.11 50.98 345.08
Unsecured Borrowings 0.00 0.00 0.00 39.87 0.00 39.87
Amount Disclosed W in ( .
Head "Short Term ) (187. 187.51) 5
Borrowings"(Note N ,@‘ﬁ (50.98) (50.98)
Net Amount / f / L 30 fHoo 0 693.20 333.98 0 333.98
s\ w 3 MR W“ And Paper Mils Pyt Lid For Garg Duplex And Paper Mills Pyt L
Note No. 4 Deferred Rax £ : lakhs
Particulars N oo—r/ As at 3tetdarch 2022 | A VBirch
-Dnrrarad P s
Deferred tax liability ~—_— " L4l 2021




ARG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD (F.Y. 2021-2022)
.5 K.M. BHOPA ROAD, MUZAFFARNAGAR-251001

JCIN : U21011UP1985PTC007472

' Ph No : 8941095976

Email : garg_duplex@hotmail.com

Gross deferred tax liability 364.46 346.81
Deferred tax assets
5 0.00 0.00
Gross deferred tax asset 0.00 0.00
Net deferred tax assets 0.00 0.00
Net deferred tax liability 364.46 346.81]
Note No. 5 Other long term liabilities T in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Others

Others long term liabilities of others : 175.35 175.35

175.35 175.35

Total ' 175.35 175.35

Note No. 6 Provisions = in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

Long-term | Short-term Total Long-term | Short-term Total
Provision for employee benefit
e s 309.05 0.00 309.05 159.19 0.00 159.19
309.05 0.00 309.05 159.19 0.00 159.19
Other provisions
Expenses Payable 0.00 226.08 226.08 0.00 252.20 252.20
Current tax provision , 0.00 270.25 270.25 0.00 299.82 299.82
0.00 496.33 496.33 0.00 552.02 552.02
Total 309.05 496.33 805.38 159.19 552.02 711.21
Note No. 7 Short-term borrowings < in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Loans Repayable on Demands - From banks
Working capital loans banks secured FROM S.B.l 1,140.33 710.43
1,140.33 710.43
Current maturities of long-term debt 187.51 50.98
) 187.51 50.98
Total 1,327.84| - 761.40
Note No. 8 Trade payables = in lakhs
Particulars : As at 31st March 2022 As at31st March 2021
(B) Others
Sundry Creditors _ 3,396.95 . 350822
3,396.95 3,508.22
Total a(ﬁ TS ‘3,396.95 3,508.22
ﬁ \ o\ For Garg Ouplex And Paper MilS PLIS /o 1y ex And Paper Mils P LW
Note No. 9 Other current liabili o‘%"" \ R
Particulars [2] SSC_ | *|L As at 31st March 2 As at 31st Marc '
Others payables s W ¥ L ) eplor
Advance received from customers cﬁ\ §@ ANV 101.16 2281
Chegque Issued But not presented for PRy < \ 198.23 64.13
Chartered 299.39 5
- 6.94
Total 299.39 36.94
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(RG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD
K.M. BHOPA ROAD, MUZAFFARNAGAR-251001
IN : U21011UP1985PTC007472

Ph No : 8941095976

Email : garg_duplex@hotmail.com

(F.Y. 2021-2022)

y Note No. 11 Non-current investments Z in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Non-Trade Investment(Valued at cost unless stated
otherwise)
Investments in equity Instruments (Unquoted)
In Others
Investment in oth i i ity i
rcustedi trag;lndlan companies equity instruments 38.06 38.06
Gross Investment 38.06 38.06
Net Investment 38.06 38.06
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 38.06 38.06
Note No. 12 Loans and advances Z in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term
Other loans and advances
Advance Recoverable in cash and Kind 0.00 965.27 0.00 977.01
0.00 965.27 0.00 977.01
Total 0.00 965.27 0.00 977.01
Note No. Other non-current assets Z in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Security Deposit 24.23
Total 24.23
S
£
(S

For Garg Buplex-And Pf;lper fots Pyt Ltd




RG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD

K.M. BHOPA ROAD, MUZAFFARNAGAR-251001
SIN : U21011UP1985PTC007472

/Ph No : 8941095976
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(F.Y. 2021-2022)

Note No. 13 Inventories Z in lakhs
[Particulars As at 31st March 2022 | _As at 31st March 2021
(Valued at cost or NRV unless otherwise stated)

Raw Material 1,978.52 806.56
Chemicals 168.46 54.05
Coal and fuel 217.54 97.02
Packing Material 10.56 6.21
Stores and spares 157.17 75.56
Finished Goods 392.51 296.31
WIP 12.50 10.00
Goods in Transit[stock in transit : Rs. 0.00(39.81)] 0.00 39.81
Total 2,937.24 1,385.52
Note No. 14 Trade receivables Z in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Secured, Considered good 0.00 0.00
Unsecured, Considered Good 4,057.14 4,705.00
Doubtful 174.51 165.68
Total 4,231.65 4,870.68

(Current Year) Z in lakhs

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

Less than 6 |6 months - 1 More than 3
raGhtlie year 1-2 years 2-3 years years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables

(considered good) 3,930.18 59.92 0.00 0.00 67.04 4,057.14

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables

(considered doubtful) 0.00 0.00 58.14 28.75 87.62 174.51

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables

considersd good 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables

considered doubtful 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(Previous Year) < in lakhs

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

Less than 6 |6 months - 1 More than 3
smonths year 1-2 years 2-3 years years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables ;

(considered good) il 16.07 16.10 4.82 70.14 4,705.00

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables

(considered doubtful) 3.2 48 30.02 36.41 51.21 165.68

(iii) Disputed Frade Receivables 0.00 0.00

considered good 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables 0.00 0.00

considered doubtful 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

For Garg Duplex And Paper Mills PvtLd

Note No. 15 Cash and cash equivalents ——

d ; lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Balance with banks
Balance with Scheduled bank> 0.00 38.08
F.D.R. and bank Guarante il 72'13
Total 106. 11 0.21
Cash in hand ' :
Cash in hand Dirgs
i : 0; 14.17
Total 1 14' 1417

99 124.38
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& DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD
R8P BHOPA ROAD, MUZAFFARNAGAR-251001

(F.Y. 2021-2022)

Note No. 16 Revenue from operations = in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Sale of products
Revenue from sale of products, gross 28,765.28 21,979.44
Goods Retrun 0.00 (20.39)
Sale of Plant & Machinery (17.21) 0.00
Sale Other 9.70 0.00
28,757.77 21,959@
Net revenue from operations 28,757.77 21,959.05 |
Note No. 17 Other income Z in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Interest Income
Interest Received. 5.78 12.18
5.78 12.18
Other non-operating income
Interest on FDR ‘ 4,08 2.36
Foreign exchange difference income 0.19 0.00
Other receipts 27.51 0.00
31.78 2.36
| Total 37.56 14.54
Note No. 18 Cost of material Consumed < in lakhs
Particulars - 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
inventory at the beginning
Raw Material 813.70 467.24
813.70 467.24
Add:Purchase
Raw Material 18,622.26 13,566.80
. : 18,622.26 13,566.80
Add/Less:Other Adjustment
Raw Material 55.82 0.00
55.82 0.00
Less:-Inventory at the end
Raw Material 1,978.52 813.70
1,978.52 813.70
Total 17,513.26 13,220.34
Details of material consumed = in lakhs
Particulars ' 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Raw Material
Consumption raw material 1249378 11,015.29
Consumption raw material 4,761.19 2.205.05
Mineral Powder 252.90 0.00
Waste Sludge 5.39 0.00
17,513.26 13,220.34
Total

Details of inventory

Particulars

Raw Material

Consumption raw material

Ly

HEN -S{Q? 13,220.34|
X e,

N
31st March 202

31st Maréh 2021

714.46

533.26

4,
Of




(F.Y. 2021-2022)

pUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD
HOPA ROAD, MUZAFFARNAGAR-251001

gQ

K.
U2101 1UP1985PTC007472

'bh No : 8941095976
" Email : garg_! duplex@hotmail.com

Consumption raw material 1,256.98 273.30
Mineral Powder 7.08 6.72
Waste Sludge 0.00 0.42
1,978.52 813.70
Total 1,978.52 813.70
Raw Material: Other Adjustment ¥ in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Consumption raw material
Goods in Transit 15.97|" 0.00
15.97 0.00
Consumption raw material
. Goods in Transit 38.44 0.00
38.44 0.00
Mineral Powder
Goods in Transit 1.41 0.00
1.41 0.00
L 55.82 0.00
Details of purchase Z in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Raw Material
Consumption raw material 12,659.01 11,261.10
Consumption raw material 5,706.43 2,298.56
Mineral Powder 251.85 6.72
Waste Sludge 4.97 0.42
18,622.26 13,566.80
Total 18,622.26 13,566.80
Note No. 19 Changes in inventories Z in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Inventory at the end of the year
Finished Goods 392.51 296.31
Work-in-Progress 12.50 10.00
405.01 306.31
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods 296.31 511.22
Work-in-Progress 10.00 2,50
ahoad 513.72
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Finished Goods (96.20) 214.91
Work-in-Progress (2.50) (7.50)
L’—’/ (88.70) 207.41
Note No. 20 Employee benefit expenses : Z in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Salaries and Wages J
Salary and wages 583.68 ql\\és 6.20h
Bonus ( 8.92 &Qt\\\ 39
Director remuneration 124.00 @'\.& 5
- “%%41 §\,§|Q \i& A’ .00
Contribution to provident and other fund or G piex And eyt T &\rﬁ ga88
Contribution to provident and other funds for others i 11.07 ‘e\(’ 0.0
VGratuity & Leave-encashment N 16098 26.10
173.05 3519
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{6 DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD
%M. BHOPA ROAD, MUZAFFARNAGAR-251001
4N : U21011UP1985PTC007472
JPh No : 8941095976
Email : garg_duplex@hotmail.com

(F.Y. 2021-2022)

/ staff welfare Expenses
/,/ Total

o

3.80 18.59
893.45 489.16
Note No. 21 Finance costs Z in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Interest
Int To others 12.94 2.21
Interest to Bank 91.13 86.43
Interest on Unsecured Loan 1.61 2.27
105.68 90.91
Other Borrowing costs
Bank charges. 16.50 21.37
Loan processing Fees 0.17 0.00
Currency Conversion Charges 12.67 0.00
29.34 21.37
Total 135.02 112.28
Note No. 22-Depreciation and amortization expenses ¥ in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Depreciation on tangible assets 197.47 169.97
Total 197.47 169.97
Note No. 23 Other expenses < in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Manufactuing Expenses 8,393.96 5,695.37
Audit fees 2.75 2.75
Printing and stationery 2.08 2.20
Repairs and maintenance of other assets 13.08 25.26
Loading and unloading expenses 138.84 82.47
Miscellaneous expenses 0.23 0.29
Postage expenses and telephone Expenses 1.46 2.90
Insurance expenses 11.86 11.92
Legal and professional expenses 4.46 463
Rates and taxes ' 6.74 7.43
Vehicle running expenses 8.24 4.80
Commision expenses 201.65 282.83
Advertising expenses 0.12 0.10
Freight on Goods Return Expenses 0.00 1.69
Freight 42717 418.04
Rent 2.00 2.00
Sales Promotion 1.09 0.00
Travelling Expenses 3.89 0'05
CSR Expenditure 10.00 1 1' 00
Charity and Donaltion 0.07 :
Bad debts (Amount is equal to or more than 1 lakh & Pan 744 0.02
available) " 93.41
Exchange Fluctuation 0.00
Consultancy Charges Fu_w Duplex And Paperils Pt Ltd  0.28
Office Exp. 1.29 888
Telephone expenses 2.0 ' 2
Security expenses 11»_5; v prechY 0,00
Pollution Expenses 7.70 0.00
%_c;i:lon Sale of Fixed Assets Duplex And Paper Mills Pvt Lid 0:00




2G DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD
OPA ROAD, MUZAFFARNAGAR-251001
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(F.Y. 2021-2022)

/ph No : 8941095976
" Email : garg_duplex@hotmail.com
Note No. 24 Current tax et
PartiCUIars ini 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Current tax pertaining to current year T 1.
270.25 299.82

Director

plex And Paper Milis Pvi Ltd

For Garg Du
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/8 BHOPA ROAD, MUZAFFARNAGAR-251001

(F.Y. 2021-2022)

Note NO. 23(a) Other expenses:Manufactuing Expenses =z in lakhs
particulars e 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Chemicals 2,189.90 1.348.77
Coal and Fuel 4,038.81 3,032.37
stores and Spares 930.13 79027
packing Material 188.60 128.06
Freight Inward 0.00 318.10
Repair and Maintenance of Plant and Machinery 139.01 77.79
MachineRent 7.51 0.00
L 8,393.96 —— 569537
Note No. 23(b) Other expenses:Bad debts Amount is equal to or more :
than 1 lakh & Pan availapble) : k T in lakhs
[Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
[Bad debts Written Off 711 93.41
|Total 741 93.41
Note No. 18 Value of import and indigenous material consumed Z in lakhs
T - Unit of 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Particulars Measurement Value Quantity Value Quantity
Raw Material
Waste Sludge 0 5.39 0.00 0.00 0.00
Mineral Powder 0 252.90 0.00 0.00 0.00
Consumption raw material 0 4,761.19 0.00 2,205.05 0.00
Consumption raw material 0 12,493.78 0.00 11,015.29 0.00
b 17,5613.26 13,220.34
Z in lakhs
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
. %to total %to total
Ertlculars o Consumption valne Consumption
Raw Material :
Imported 4,761.19 27.19 2,205.05 16.68
Indigenous 12,752.07 72.81 11,015.29 83.32
17,513.26 100.00 13,220.34 100.00
Z in lakhs

Note No. 26 Earning Per Share

Particulars Before Extraordinary items After Extraordinary items
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
2022 2021 2022 2021
Basic |
Profit after tax (A) 582.00 722.25 582.00 722.25
Weighted average number of shares outstanding
P 68,55,000 68,55,000 68,55,000 68,55,000
Basic EPS (A /B) 8.49 10.54 8.49 10.54
Diluted
Profit after tax (A) 722.25 582.00 722.25
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 68 55.000 .
& 199, 68,55,000 68,55,000
Diluted EPS (A / B) 10.54 8.49 10
: .54 i
Face value per share 10.00 9-?@4@ Duplex And PWBWP“W
For ea:g\pgm,vavem Patt
LS
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GARG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS PVT LTD
8.5 K.M. BHOPA ROAD,MUZAFFARNAGAR,UTTAR PRADESH,251001

CIN : U21011UP1985PTC007472
Email : garg duplex@hotmail.com

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Significant Accounting Policies

1. Nature of activity :-
During the year the company has Manufacturing of Kraft Paper.

2. Basis of accounting:-
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) including the Accounting Standards notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual
basis.

3. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future

periods.

4. Revenue Recognition: -
Expenses and Income considered payable and receivable respectively are accounted for on
accrual basis.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

5. Property, Plant & Equipment :-

Property, Plant & Equipment including intangiple. assets are stated at their original cost of
acquisition . including taxes, freight and other incidental expenses related to acquisition and

installation of the concerned assets less depreciation till date.

N e Pyt Lid
' paper WIS
For Garg Diyjex And Paanm PRL | otex An
for Gag A<
‘/—/ D“edl

" Director




6. Depreciation :-

Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on the Written down
Value (WDV) Method/SLM method. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognized on a pro-rata basis to the
statement of profit and loss till the date of acquisition/sale.

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

After impairment, depreciation is prévided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

7. Foreign currency Transactions: -

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are converted at the rates closely
approximating the rates ruling on the transaction dates. Liabilities and receivables in foreign
currency are restated at the year-end exchange rates. All exchange rate differences arising from
conversion in terms of the above are included in the statement of profit and loss.

8. Investments :-

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price
and directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value
determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost.
However, provision for diminutions in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in
the value of the investments. ' ~

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal
proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

9. Inventories :-
Inventories are valued as under:-
1. Inventories Lower of cost(FIFO/specific cost/Weighted avg) or net realizable valye
2. Scrap : At net realizable value.

10. Borrowing cost:-
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of the qualifying assets are
capitalized as part of the cost of such assets.-A qualifying assets is one that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready fqyélfs intende uSes or sale. All other borrowing costs are
charged to revenue in the year of incurrégoé. The amsunt of borrowing cost capitalized during the
year is NIL. [,_;: / \%

) For Garg Duplex And Paper Mills Pt Ltd
*or Garg Dyplex Afd/ ills Pvt Ltd v
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// 11.Retirement Benefits:-

T

i

The retirement benefits are accounted for as and when liability becomes due for payment.
12.Taxes on Income:-

Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current
accounting year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. The deferred tax for timing
differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted for, using the tax rates and
laws that have been substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets arising
from timing differences are recognized to the extent there is virtual certainty with convincing
evidence that these would be realized in future. At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount
of deferred tax is reviewed to reassure realization.

13.Cash & cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at bank, and deposits held at call with banks
having a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

14.Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:- (AS-29)

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and
when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Contingent Liabilities is disclosed in Notes to the account for:-

(i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control
of the company or

(i) Present Obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statement since this may result in the
recognition of the income that may never be realized.

General:

Except wherever stated, accounting policies are consistent with the generally accepted accounting
principles and have been consistently applied.

(B)Notes on Financial Statements

1. Salaries includes directors remuneration on account of salary Rs. 12400000/- (Previous Year Rs.
7200000/-) '

2. Trade receivables, Trade payables, Loans & Advar)ges and Unsecured Loans have been taken at

their book value subject to confirmation and-rgrpRgMation.
3 w%p\WPawr Mills Pyt Ltd
X/ Director

For Garg Duplex And Paper Mills P¥t Ltd

3. Payments to Auditors:




Total

' Auditors Remuneration 2021-2022 2020-2021
Audit Fees 275000.00 275000.00
Tax Audit Fees - -
Company Law Matters - .
GST 49500.00 49500.00

324500.00 324500.00

. Loans and Advances are considered good in respect of which company does not hold any
security other than the personal guarantee of persons.

. No provision for retirement benefits has been made, in view of accounting policy No. 11. The
impact of the same on Profit & Loss is not determined.

. Advance to others includes advances to concerns in which directors are interested:

Name of Concern

Current Year

Closing Balance

Previous Year
Closing Balance

NIL

NIL

. Details of Bank Credit Facilities including Term Loan & Non Fund Base facilities sanctioned by the

bank.

C/C Hypothecation

Sr. No. Particulars Particulars
1 Bank Name & Address HDFC BANK LTD, LINK ROAD, GANDHI
COLONY MUZAFFARNAGAR. U.P
2 Amount Sanctioned 20 CRORES
2 Margin 25% =
4 Rate of Interest 6.5%
5 Repayment Schedule RENEWED AFTER EVERY 12 MONTHS
6 Details of Securities Al Raw Material, Packing Materials,

Consumable Goods, Semi Finished Goods,
Finished Goods & Sundry Debtors of  Days

7 Name of Guarantors

Divya Jain, Rajesh Jain, Rajeev Jain

B ¢ Details of Charge Creation

Charge ID : 100408355

Date of Charge: 04/01/2021

Term Loan 1.Project Loan

e

Sr. No. Particulars Particulars
1 Bank Name & Address HDFC BANK LTD, LINK ROAD, GANDH
: COLONY MUZAFFARNAGAR U.P J
2 Amount Sanctioned %‘ Aga“"a/\@ crores

3 Margin

Fot W Pyt Lid
lsPVt le M
Director

Director



Rate of Interest

6.9%

Repayment Schedule

7Yrs

Details of Securities

As per sanction letter attached

Name of Guarantors

Divya Jain, Rajesh Jain, Rajeev Jain

OINO| O D

Details of Charge Creation

Charge ID 100408355

Date of Charge 01/01/2021

Term Loan 2. GECL Loan

Sr. No. Particulars Particulars

1 Bank Name & Address HDFC BANK LTD, LINK ROAD, GANDHI
COLONY MUZAFFARNAGAR. U.P

2 Amount Sanctioned 17347897.00

3 Margin N.A

4 Rate of Interest 7.5%

5 Repayment Schedule 4Yrs

6 Details of Securities As per sanction letter attached

T Name of Guarantors Divya Jain, Rajesh Jain, Rajeev Jain

8 Details of Charge Creation Charge ID: 100408355

Date of Charge:01/01/2021

Bank Guarantee/ Letter of credit/ Buyers
credit

Sr. No. " Particulars Particulars

1 Bank Name & Address HDFC BANK LTD, LINK ROAD; GANDHI |
COLONY MUZAFFARNAGAR. U.P

2 Amount Sanctioned 2 crores

3 Margin 25%

4 Rate of Interest N.A

5 Repayment Schedule Renewal after every 12 months

6 Details of Securities As per sanction letter Attached

i Name of Guarantors Divya Jain, Rajesh Jain, Rajeev Jain

8 Details of Charge Creation Charge ID 100408355
Date of Charge 01/01/2021

(A) Related Parties and their Relationship

(1) Key Management Personhel é
4 s

8. Related Party disclosure as identified by the company and relied upon by the auditors:

! up\exAYa/w Mills Pvt Lid
\or

pifi@igyarg Duplex And Paper Mills Pvt Ltd
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1. SHRI RAJESHN JAIN
2. SHRIRAJEEV JAIN

(I) Relative of Key Management Personnel

ol s

SH. SANJEEV JAIN
SMT.DIVYA JAIN
SMT.MONIKA JAIN
SMT. VIBHA JAIN
SH. SANATH JAIN

2 NP

o

SILVERTON PULP & PAPERS PVT LTD.

AROMA CRAFT AND TISSUES PRIVATE LIMITED
SUPERIOR REFRACTORIES AND CERAMICSPRIVATE LIMITED
SANMATI AUTOEXPERTS PRIVATE LIMITED
SH. ARUN KUMAR JAIN

(1) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key Management personnel or their relatives

Transactions with Related parties

(Figure in Lacs)

Transactions during the year

Current Year (2021-22) Previous year (2020-21)
Key Relative of Key Relative of
. Management Ke Managemen Ke
Akaalils Pers%nnel Manageyment t Persgonnel Manageyment
» Personnel Personnel
Advance Paid 23.00 - - -
Received Back 16.00 - - -
Deposit Received - - - -
Deposit Repaid - - - -
Interest Received - - - -
Interest Paid - - - -
Remuneration Paid | 124.00 - 72.00 -
Purchase - 48.74 - 18.97
Rent Paid - 2.00 - 2.00
Sale - 27.63 - 191.10
{ Job Charges - - - -

9. Additional Regulatory Information/disclosures as required by General Instructions to Schedule IlI
to the Companies Act, 2013 are furnished to the extent applicable to the Company.

10. % of imported & indigehous raw material & consumables

"

Particulars 2022 2021
Amount % Amount
Imported 476118900.51 | 16.68 220504934.47
Indigenous WOG% 83.32 1101529485.66
9 Paper MG PV 5 G Du

Diector
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~ 11.Value of Imports

Raw Material 444259791.08 220504934.47
Stores 1985779.06 NIL
Finished Goods Nil Nil

12. Expenditure in Foreign Currency Nil Nil

13. Earning in Foreign Exchange Nil Nil

14. Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

15.CSR DETAIL :-

Financial Net Profit CSR Average net CSRto be | Actual CSR | Aggregate

Year Before Tax Applicable Profit of past | incurred 2% | incurred Balance/Surplus
3 years

2018-19 79800969.02 Y 46372983.15 | 927459.66 | 632000.00 (295459.66)

2019-20 42482022.00 &Y 63697909.76 | 1273958.20 | 928000.00 (641417.86)

2020-21 108969605.00 8 65008572.14 | 1300171.44 | 1100000.00 | (841 589.86)

2021-22 86988936.59 Y 77084198.67 | 1541683.97 | 1000000.00 (1383273.28)

In terms of Our Separate Audit Report of Even Date Attached.

For GARG DUPLEX AND PAPER MILLS
PVT LTD

‘ For Garg Duplex And Paper Mils
¢ or Bt BuUdiex And F’g\éf Mills Pvt Lid : /
For 1) R .
’ - Director

RAYEEV JAHF™ RAJESH JAIN
Director Director
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